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Farewell to the Terrace
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A SPECIAL REPORT

A move that completes a historic legacy
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enjamin Les Guinness af

Mo B0 5t Stephen's
Gresn, @paw  Iveaph
House, acquired the

Caburp Gardens at the back afhis
house in 1362

[ had this property, then ina
neglecead state, landscaped inthe
skyle thar we recognige woday as
Iveagh Gardens. On this site was
held the Great Dublin Interna-
tienal Exhibition of 1BES.

Ta hiase that event an impres-
sive Winter Garden of glass and
iren as well as an Exhibition
FPalace in brick and stone faciog
an to Earlsfort Terrace were
erected,

After the 1855 Event, the Guin-
ness family retained the stroc-
tures For comcerts and exhibi-
tions. The Winter Garden was
sald in 1BB2 amd removed w Enp-
lamd.

The Exhibition Palace along
Earlsfort Terrace was sold the ol
lewing vear wo the Commis-
sioners of Public Works, and
accwpied by the then recently
established Roval University of
Ireland.

Converted for wniversity pur-
posas, it was there betwesn 1583
and 1909 ehat candidates from all
aver [ealand sae their Boyal Uni-
versity examinations and did

thedr science experiments for
these examinations.

And it was bere, in the sarly
wears of the twentieth century, in
whit had been the Concert Hall
af the old Exhibition Palace and
now regamed the Great Fall, thas
the students of cthe Jesait-man-
aped  University College an
5t Stepben’s Green  protested
against the plaving of God Sawe
tiee King during the conferring oer-
EMNIE

Under the Irish Universities
At (1908) University College
Dublin became a constiteent col-
lepe of the Maticnal University of
Ireland, and a grant was mads
available far the pecessary build-
ings. Several possible sites were
examined before the College
authorities concleded that the
Earlsfort Terrace site offerad the
best solution.

On fve-and-a-half acres, 1t fell
far shaort of the acreage provided
far recently astabliched collapes
in Britain. EM Butler was
appainted architect, amd the
building cantract was awarded to
Gand T Cramptan.

Butler's plan propesed a guad-
rangle. The frant, Facing east
along Earlsfort Terrace, would
contain  Arts, Cammerce and
administration. The narth wing,

As UCD prepares to
leave Earlsfort
Terrace in Dublin
city centre, Prof
Donal McCartney
recalls many of

the historic events
that shaped it

facing St Stephen’s Green, waould
house the science faculty. The
south wing, along Hatch Sereet,
winld be for medicine. The west
wing, backing on ta Iveaph Goar-
dens, would accommodate the
faculti=ss of Enginesring and
Architecture, And a central bloc
would encloge the library and
Anlz Moxima.

The canstruction bepan in 1912
but encounbersd several difficul-

Right: a statue in the lveagh Gardens
= the Earisfort Terrace backyard

ties. The most sarouws problam
wis the effect of the 1914-18 war
which greatly inflated prices
while the parliamentary grant for
Brwilding remained as it was fixed
in 1904,

When the erection af the pra-
posed quadrangle had to be sus-
pended {permanantly as it tarmed
aut), cnly the oot and nerth
wing had been completed - or
less than half the ariginal scheme.

Ie was the last major building
praject of the Brtish administra-
tian in Dublin; and like the
country itsell, it was l=ft tran-
cated as the British withdrew.

And it is not withouat its own
peculiar symbalism that the tragi-
cally divisive Treaty debates,
resulting ultimately in the Civil
War, should have taken place in
the Council Chamber of the unfin-
1shed Earlsfort Terrace building.

Beanwhile, the number of stu-
dents  attending UCD  was
expanding beyond avery expaecta-
ticn. IF the quadrangle at Earls-
fart Terrace had been completed
it was intended o accommodate
L0000 camiartably.

The avercrowding was
raleved to same extent in 1926 by
the transter of the College of 5ci-
ence in Merrion Street to UTCD.
The relief, howeyver, was tempa-
rary, for numbers continued ta
prow; and a few years later the
Medical School had o be moved
out of i old premises in Cecilia
Streat to add to the numbers in
Earlsfort Terrace.

Im 1839 Lord [wesph affered his
bouse and pardens as a gift to the
matian. The gevernment decided
ta keep Iveagh House for the
Department of External Affairs
but was prepared to beage vo UCD
the uge af the pardens and the
riding-school grounds alongsade
the narthern end of Earlsfort Ter-
race, and o graot a new Engi-
meering and Science bwikding at
the Elatch Street end in Liewa of the
Callepe of Science in Merrion
Street

The Hatch Street scheme
proved too cramped without the
acquisition of Crawferd's parags
at one end or the laundey at the

other. Hopes of acquiring Lord
Iveagh's teppis-courts were
dashed when this site was
reserved dor a civil servants’ res-
taurant.

Plans dor the erection of a
Schaal of Architecture in the par-
dens behind the Catholic Univer-
sity houses, gumbers 82-86 St
Stephen’s Green, had to be aban-
domed because the Office af
Fublic Warks abjected on the
prownds that the building wauld
interfere with the privacy and the
amaunt of sunlight falling cn the
gparden of the Department of
External Affairs.

Effarts to purchase Mespil
Heuse and property in Peter's
Place also failed. And when the
povernment made it clear that
compulsery  purchase powers
wiold mot be farthcoming the
LD sutbrorities decided oo a sub-
urban campus ae Balfiald.

When this became public, for-
midabkle and bitter appasiticn ta
the proposed move from the city
pathered momentum.

A Commission on Accommode-
tiore Meed's, umder the chairman-
ship of Mr Justice Cearchhall &
Dralaigh, reported in 1959 in
favour of the transfer aof UCD ta
Balfiald, and the Dail approved it
in 1960,

Meanwhile, drastic ower-
crowding  necessitated several
makeshift adjustments. In the
decade 1950-1G8 student oum-
bers more tham deubled from
mare than 4,700 to more than
10,200, The overcrowding cre-
ated favourable conditions for
the student revalt and oocupa-
tians of the late 19605

UCD's pvacuation from the
Terrace, which began with the
orpening of the science building in
Belfizld in 1964, has taken a long
timse b camplebs.

Its Great Hall was handed over
in 1977 far a resplendent fature as
the Matiomal Concert Hall. The
Cemeert Hall shared Earlefart Tar-
race with UCD's Departments af
Medicine and Enginearing.

After a century, UCD bids fare-
wall b the Terrscs, These of us
who have been its privileged, if
LEmporary, occupant: may, at
tinzes, kave suffered in its over-
crowding. More often, we will
have enjoyed the camaraderis
which it engenderad, and will
ever be grateful for the memaries
awiakenad thena,

A Praf Donal MeCarmey attended
UCD as an urdergraducte in 1948
rnd was professer of Madern Irich
Histary there from 1578 to [95%4



